
      
NOTICE OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE TOWN OF CAREFREE ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAREFREE WATER COMPANY, INC.

 
WHEN: TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2025

 

WHERE: CAREFREE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
33 EASY STREET, CAREFREE, AZ 85377

LIVESTREAM: CAREFREE YOUTUBE CHANNEL
https://www.youtube.com/@Carefree.AZgov
 

TIME: 4:00 P.M.
 
Pursuant to A.RS. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town Council of the Town of
Carefree, Arizona and to the general public that the members of the Town Council will hold a meeting
open to the public. For any item listed on the agenda, the Council may vote to go into Executive Session
for advice of counsel and/or to discuss records and information exempt by law or rule from public
inspection, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues §38-431.03.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:
      
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL

Members of the Board of Directors may participate by technological means or methods pursuant to
A.R.S. §10-708.
 

REGULAR AGENDA   
 

1. Approval of the  November 12, 2024, Joint Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Town of
Carefree Utilities Community Facilities District and Board of Directors of the Carefree
Water Company Meeting Minutes. 

 

Attachments
11.12.24 Draft Minutes

 

2. Presentation on the proposed FY 25-26 Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities Community
Facilities District (Carefree UCFD) budget (informational only).

 

Attachments
FY 25-26 UCFD Budget

 

3. Presentation on the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree Water Company budget, rates, fees, and
charges (informational only).

 

Attachments
FY 25-26 CWC Budget

 

4. Review, discussion, and possible action on Resolution 2025-01 approving the proposed FY
25-26 Carefree UCFD budget and the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree Water Company budget,
rates, fees, and charges and calling for a Public Hearing.

 

https://www.youtube.com/@carefreeazgov


Attachments
Resolution 2025-01

 

5. Public Hearing on the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree UCFD budget and the proposed FY 25-26
Carefree Water Company budget, rates, fees, and charges.

 

1. Adjournment.   
 

DATED this 30th day of April 2025.

TOWN OF CAREFREE
 

______________________________
By: Kristen Krey, Town Clerk/Treasurer
         

Items may be taken out of sequence
Council meetings are now broadcast live via the Town of Carefree YouTube channel: @CarefreeAZgov

Sign Up For Emails: https://www.carefree.org/page/sign-up
Email: info@carefree.org

Website: www.carefree.org
Social Media: Facebook | Instagram | YouTube | LinkedIn

Download our App: Carefree Connection - Available on Google Play & Apple
 

FOR SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS
Please contact the Town Clerk, 8 Sundial Circle (PO Box 740), Carefree, AZ 85377; (480)

488-3686, at least three working days
prior to the meeting if you require special accommodations due to a disability.  

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@CarefreeAZgov
https://www.carefree.org/page/sign-up
mailto:info@carefree.org
http://www.carefree.org
https://www.facebook.com/TownOfCarefree
https://www.instagram.com/townofcarefree/
https://www.youtube.com/@CarefreeAZgov
https://www.linkedin.com/company/town-of-carefree/
https://aptg.co/GzmRRf
https://aptg.co/9_czV9


Agenda Item #  1.
TOWN OF CAREFREE

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:
 

05/06/2025
 

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the  November 12, 2024, Joint M eeting of the Board of            
Directors of the Town of Carefree Utilities Community Facilities       
District and Board of Directors of the Carefree Water Company        
Meeting Minutes. 
 

PREPARED BY: Kristen Krey, Town Clerk / Treasurer

SUMMARY:
Approval of draft minutes November 12,2025.

ACTION NEEDED:
Motion to approve the minutes of November 12,2024.

Attachments
11.12.24 Draft Minutes



D R A F T 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE TOWN OF CAREFREE UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT AND 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAREFREE WATER COMPANY, INC. 
  

WHEN: TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2024 

  

WHERE: CAREFREE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

33 EASY STREET, CAREFREE, AZ 85377  
  

LIVESTREAM: CAREFREE YOUTUBE CHANNEL 

https://www.youtube.com/@Carefree.AZgov 

  

TIME: 4:00 P.M. 
  

Pursuant to A.RS. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town Council of the 
Town of Carefree, Arizona and to the general public that the members of the Town Council will 
hold a meeting open to the public. For any item listed on the agenda, the Council may vote to 
go into Executive Session for advice of counsel and/or to discuss records and information 
exempt by law or rule from public inspection, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues §38-431.03. 
  

           

CALL TO ORDER 

Board Member Stephen Hatcher, appeared telephonically.  
  

ROLL CALL 

Members of the Board of Directors may participate by technological means or methods pursuant 
to A.R.S. §10-708. 

 Present: John Crane, Chairman   

Cheryl Kroyer, Vice Chairwoman   

Sheila Amoroso, Board Member   

Vince D'Aliesio, Board Member   

Stephen Hatcher, Board Member   

Michael Johnson, Board Member  

Clint Miller, Board Member   

Staff Present: Denis Fitzgibbons, Town Attorney 

Kandace French Contreras, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

Greg Crossman, Water Company Manager 

AGENDA 
  

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/www.youtube.com/_@carefreeazgov___.YXAzOnRvd25vZmNhcmVmcmVlOmE6bzpjYjdiZDViMmRlMjVlYTRmNGYxNWM0MjQ3MjhiZWJjYTo2OmMxZTc6MmQ5NjdmMGNmZGQxYWVmZDI1MDEyZmFkNzM4NWQ5YzlmYzc3ZjA4Yzk4MWNlY2M1NmVhNzkzNWRkNTYwZWZiMDpwOlQ6Tg


1. Review, discussion and possible action to approve the June 4, 2024, Joint Meeting 

Minutes.     

MOTION:       Vice Chair Kroyer moved to approve as presented. 

SECOND:       Board Member Sheila Amoroso. 

VOTE:            Approved 7-0 

  

Voting Member Aye/Nay 

  

Chairman John Crane Aye 

Vice Chairman Cheryl Kroyer Aye 

Vince D'Aliesio Aye 

Sheila Amoroso Aye 

Stephen Hatcher Aye 

Mike Johnson Aye 

Clint Miller Aye 

   

2. Review, discussion, and possible action to approve the following:    

  

A. Resolution No. 2024-04 authorizing the President of the Water Company to enter 

into the following contract; 

B. Construction Contract No. 2024-C01 with Elite Civil Construction, LLC for the 
Peaceful Place Booster Pump Station (BPS) Site Improvements Project for an amount not 
to exceed $756,000.00. 

General Manager, Greg Crossman, presented a PowerPoint and explained the 

improvements to the Peaceful Place Pump Station. He provided information regarding 

the bids and the selected contractor. He highlighted the new 6" pipeline, 7 fire hydrants 

and the new fire protection zone as a result of the Water Consolidation Project and these 

pump station improvements. 
  

After discussion,  

MOTION:       Board Member Vince D'Aliesio moved to approve as presented. 

SECOND:       Board Member Sheila Amoroso. 

VOTE:            Approved 7-0  
  

Voting Member Aye/Nay 

  

Chairman John Crane Aye 

Vice Chairman Cheryl Kroyer Aye 

Sheila Amoroso Aye 

Tony Geiger Aye 

Stephen Hatcher Aye 



Mike Johnson Aye 

Clint Miller Aye 

   

3. Review, discussion, and possible action to accept the findings of the 2023-2024 Fiscal 

Year  audit of the District by approval of Resolution 2024-05. 

Greg Crossman presented information regarding the fiscal year audit. He outlined the 

goals of the audit and the audit results, including a clean audit free from misstatements 

and that the UCFD/Carefree Water Company was in sound financial condition. 

Heinfeld Meech representative, Jennifer Shields, CPA, appeared and confirmed the 

positive findings of the audit. 

MOTION:       Board Member Sheila Amoroso moved to approve the agenda item as 

presented. 

SECOND:       Board Member Michael Johnson. 

VOTE:            Approved 7-0 

  

Voting Member Aye/Nay 

  

Chairman John Crane Aye 

Vice Chairman Cheryl Kroyer Aye 

Sheila Amoroso Aye 

Tony Geiger Aye 

Stephen Hatcher Aye 

Mike Johnson Aye 

Clint Miller Aye 

  
  

4. Informational Only.  Discussion and information regarding new Environmental Protection  

Agency (EPA) requirements for documentation of service line materials and notices that 

are required to be sent to certain customers in the near future that have service line 

materials of an unknown material. 

General Manager Greg Crossman, provided information on the EPA notice requirements 

and explained the notice was required to go out again in July, 2025. There was no action 

on this item as it was information only.  
  

5. Adjournment. 

MOTION:       Board Member Sheila Amoroso moved to adjourn. 

SECOND:       Board Member Clint Miller. 

VOTE:            Approved 7-0 

  



Voting Member Aye/Nay 

  

Chairman John Crane Aye 

Vice Chairman Cheryl Kroyer Aye 

Sheila Amoroso Aye 

Tony Geiger Aye 

Stephen Hatcher Aye 

Mike Johnson Aye 

Clint Miller Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 4:46 p.m. 
  

  

DATED this 13th  of  November, 2023. 

UCFD/CAREFREE WATER COMPANY, INC. 

BY:________________________________________                                                                      

Kandace French Contreras, Secretary/Treasurer 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

____________________________________________ 

John Crane, Chairman 

Attest:     

____________________________________________                                                     

Kandace French Contreras, Secretary/Treasurer 

CERTIFICATION  

I hereby certify that the foregoing are a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Joint Meeting of 

the Board of Directors of the Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities Community Facilities District and the 

Board of Directors of the Carefree Water Company, Inc. held on the date noted above.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

____________________________________________                                                    

Kandace French Contreras, Secretary Treasurer             



Agenda Item #  2.
TOWN OF CAREFREE

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:
 

05/06/2025
 

SUBJECT:
 

Presentation on the proposed FY 25-26 Town of Carefree, Arizona        
Utilities Community Facilities District (Carefree UCFD) budget     
(informational only).
 

PREPARED BY: Greg Crossman, Carefree Water Company Manager

SUMMARY:
Attached for your review prior to the May 6, 2025, Board meeting is the proposed Carefree UCFD
budget for FY 25-26.

With the substantial completion of the Carefree Water Consolidation Project (WCP), the FY 25-26
UCFD budget primarily focuses on our Debt Service repayment obligations and infrastructure
enhancements to be constructed within the boundaries of the original Carefree Water Company
service area.

These infrastructure enhancements are associated wit two projects; the Peaceful Place Booster Pump
Station Improvement Project and the Silver Saddle Gravity Zone Improvement Project.  Both
projects have substantial benefits within the original Carefree Water Company service area and
benefits in the acquisition areas.  The Peaceful Place Booster Pump Station Improvement Project is
currently under construction with an anticipated completion date near the end of summer 2025.  A
Federal Community Grant of $800,000 from the Environmental Protection Agency has been awarded
to the Carefree UCFD to facilitate the construction of the Silver Saddle Gravity Zone Improvement
Project.  

Please contact Greg Crossman (480-488-9100; greg@carefreewaterco.com) with any questions.
 

ACTION NEEDED:
Informational Only.  No Action Required.

Attachments
FY 25-26 UCFD Budget



 
 

Town of Carefree, Arizona 
Utilities Community Facilities 

District 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

FY 25-26 Budget 



  
 

 
 

TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
 

PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2025/26 
 

 
BEGINNING UCFD FUNDS AVAILABLE   $2,037,460 
 
   

SOURCES   
  REVENUES (FROM CAREFREE WATER COMPANY)   
 Debt Service and Rent $1,426,064  

Contingency $500,000  
Total CWC Revenues  $1,926,064 

   
  OTHER REVENUE SOURCES   

Federal Community Grant $800,000  
 Total Other Revenue Sources  $800,000 
   
TOTAL SOURCES  $4,763,524 
 
 
 

  

EXPENDITURES   
  ADMINISTRATION   
 Rent $33,000  
 Total Administration  $33,000 
   
  CAPITAL   
 Public Infrastructure - Construction $2,800,000  
 Contingency $500,000  
 Total Capital  $3,300,000 
   
  DEBT SERVICE   
 Principal – Water System Revenue Bonds Series 2021              $385,000      
 Interest – Water System Revenue Bonds Series 2021 $714,500  
 Trustee Fees $800  
 Capital Advance Payment $48,000  
 Capital Lease Payment (WIFA) $244,764  
 Total Debt Service  $1,393,064 
   
TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $4,726,064 
 
   

ENDING FUNDS AVAILABLE   $37,460 
 



Agenda Item #  3.
TOWN OF CAREFREE

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:
 

05/06/2025
 

SUBJECT:
 

Presentation on the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree Water Company       
budget, rates, fees, and charges (informational only).
 

PREPARED BY: Greg Crossman, Carefree Water Company Manager

SUMMARY:
Attached for your review prior to the May 6, 2025, Board meeting are proposed Carefree Water
Company budget and water rate documents for FY 25-26.  The Water Company's fiscal year
coincides with the Town's and runs from July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2026.

The proposed water rate increase for FY 25-26 is 4.4% which is consistent with the 5-Year Rate Plan
recommended by Willdan Financial Consultants and approved in 2021.  FY 25-26 is the last year of
the 5-year plan.  This increase applies to both the monthly base fee and the commodity rates and
results in an increase in the average residential customer's water bill of $5.69 per month.  This figure
is based on an average residential water use of 12,000 gallons per month.

The Water Company's revenues for FY 25-26 are anticipated to be $5.2 million, an increase from
last year's budget of $200,000.

The following is a summary of major expense indicators for this year's budget:
•    APS Power -- 6% increase
•    CAP Water (Untreated) --14% increase (due to shortage conditions on the Colorado River)
•    Scottsdale Water (Treated) -- 5% increase
•    General and Administrative Costs -- 9% increase (includes new regulatory expenditures)
•    Replacement and Maintenance Costs -- 4% increase

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS - FEES, CHARGES, AND DEPOSITS

The FY 25-26 proposal also includes the following updates to fees, charges, and deposits:
•    Standpipe (Fill Station) and Fire Hydrant Meter Rates are being adjusted to align with the market
conditions and the cost of doing business.
•    Updated Water Supply Fee -- Carefree's Water Supply Fee for new development was initially
approved in FY 22-23.  The fee was updated for FY 24-25 to reflect rapidly changing costs in the
water supply market.  Again, under this year's budget, updates to the Water Supply Fee are being
proposed to reflect current cost information for existing and future water supplies and resources.
 
BUDGET AND RATES DETAILS

Included in this packet are the following FY 25-26 documents: 
•    Water Rates Summary and Spreadsheets (pages 2-5)
•    Profit and Loss Summary and Spreadsheet (pages 6-7)
•    Cost of Water Summary and Spreadsheet (pages 8-9)
•    General and Administrative Budget Summary and Spreadsheet (pages 10-14)
•    Replacement and Maintenance Budget Summary and Spreadsheet (pages 15-17)
•    Reserve Recommendations (page 18)
•    Capital Improvement Program Recommendations and Spreadsheets (pages 19-22)
•    Water Supply Fee Update (pages 23-25)



Please contact Greg Crossman (480-488-9100; greg@carefreewaterco.com) with any questions.
 

ACTION NEEDED:
Informational Only.  No Action Required.

Attachments
FY 25-26 CWC Budget



 
 

 
 
 

Budget, Rates, Fees and 
Charges Packet 

 

FY 25-26 



 2 
 

Water Rates and Fees Summary 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
Rates 
• 4.4% Overall Water Rate Increase – Base Fee and Commodity Rates 
• Consistent with the 5-Year Rate Plan approved in 2021 
• Rate increase takes effect July 2025 
• Average Monthly Bill Increase (Residential):  $5.69 
• Current Average Monthly Residential Bill:  $130.63 

o Proposed Average Monthly Residential Bill:  $136.32 
o Based on an average monthly use of 12,000 gallons 

 
• Current Residential Base Fee:  $57.40 – Proposed Residential Base Fee:  $59.93 – Up $2.53 

o $20.00/month “Acquisition Fee” - Neighborhoods A, B, and C 
• Commodity Rates:  Remain in 5 Tiers to Encourage Conservation 

o Tier Break Points Have Remained the Same 
o Rate in Each Tier (per 1,000 gallon charge) has Increased 4.4% 

• Similar 4.4% adjustments to other rate categories (commercial meters and master meters) 
 
• Standpipe (Fill Station) – Proposed 40% Rate Increase to Align With Market and cost of 

doing business 
o $8.21 per 1,000 gallons  $11.50 per 1,000 gallons 
o Minimum Charge $5.00  $20.00 
o Most Communities Do Not Provide This Service 
o Carefree – No New Accounts, Limited Based on Historic Usage (CY 21&22) 

• Fire Hydrant Meter – Base Fee Increased to $200/month – includes first 20,000 gallons 
o Refundable Deposit Increased to $1,000 
 

Fees 
• Water Supply Fee – An updated Water Supply Fee for new development is being proposed 

in this budget.  A revised Fee Report is included at the end of this budget document.  



M
on

th
ly

M
et

er
M

et
er

M
et

er
Ba

se
Fr

om
To

Fr
om

To
Fr

om
To

Fr
om

To
Fr

om
To

Ty
pe

Si
ze

Cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n
Fe

e
(g

al
lo

ns
)

(g
al

lo
ns

)
(g

al
lo

ns
)

(g
al

lo
ns

)
(g

al
lo

ns
)

(g
al

lo
ns

)
(g

al
lo

ns
)

(g
al

lo
ns

)
(g

al
lo

ns
)

(g
al

lo
ns

)

Re
sid

en
tia

l
5/

8"
, 3

/4
",

 1
"

R1
, R

2,
 R

4
59

.9
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
8,

00
0

   
   

 
8,

00
1

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
  

20
,0

01
   

  
30

,0
00

   
  

30
,0

01
   

  
50

,0
00

   
  

50
,0

01
   

  
an

d 
ov

er
Re

sid
en

tia
l

5/
8"

, 3
/4

",
 1

"
R1

A,
 R

2A
, R

4A
79

.9
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
8,

00
0

   
   

 
8,

00
1

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
  

20
,0

01
   

  
30

,0
00

   
  

30
,0

01
   

  
50

,0
00

   
  

50
,0

01
   

  
an

d 
ov

er

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

1 
in

ch
C5

/C
5A

$1
07

.8
7/

$1
27

.8
7

0
8,

00
0

   
   

 
8,

00
1

   
   

 
16

,0
00

   
  

16
,0

01
   

  
32

,0
00

   
  

32
,0

01
   

  
64

,0
00

   
  

64
,0

01
   

  
an

d 
ov

er
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
1-

1/
2 

in
ch

C6
/C

6A
$2

67
.7

0/
$2

87
.7

0
0

11
,0

00
   

  
11

,0
01

   
  

16
,0

00
   

  
16

,0
01

   
  

35
,0

00
   

  
35

,0
01

   
  

70
,0

00
   

  
70

,0
01

   
  

an
d 

ov
er

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

2 
in

ch
C8

/C
8A

$6
41

.6
4/

$6
61

.6
4

0
20

,0
00

   
  

20
,0

01
   

  
40

,0
00

   
  

40
,0

01
   

  
80

,0
00

   
  

80
,0

01
   

  
16

0,
00

0
   

16
0,

00
1

   
an

d 
ov

er
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
3 

in
ch

C9
/C

9A
$8

55
.3

7/
$8

75
.3

7
0

10
0,

00
0

   
10

0,
00

1
   

20
0,

00
0

   
20

0,
00

1
   

40
0,

00
0

   
40

0,
00

1
   

60
0,

00
0

   
60

0,
00

1
   

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 1
M

M
1 

- 8
45

5.
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

30
,0

00
   

  
30

,0
01

   
  

40
,0

00
   

  
40

,0
01

   
  

60
,0

00
   

  
60

,0
01

   
  

80
,0

00
   

  
80

,0
01

   
  

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 2
M

M
2 

- 4
22

8.
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

30
,0

00
   

  
30

,0
01

   
  

50
,0

00
   

  
50

,0
01

   
  

70
,0

00
   

  
70

,0
01

   
  

90
,0

00
   

  
90

,0
01

   
  

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 3
M

M
3 

- 8
45

5.
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

40
,0

00
   

  
40

,0
01

   
  

80
,0

00
   

  
80

,0
01

   
  

10
0,

00
0

   
10

0,
00

1
   

15
0,

00
0

   
15

0,
00

1
   

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 4
M

M
4 

- 6
34

1.
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

50
,0

00
   

  
50

,0
01

   
  

10
0,

00
0

   
10

0,
00

1
   

19
0,

00
0

   
19

0,
00

1
   

25
0,

00
0

   
25

0,
00

1
   

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 5
M

M
5 

- 1
2

69
7.

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
30

,0
00

   
  

30
,0

01
   

  
50

,0
00

   
  

50
,0

01
   

  
80

,0
00

   
  

80
,0

01
   

  
10

0,
00

0
   

10
0,

00
1

   
an

d 
ov

er
M

as
te

r M
et

er
 6

M
M

6 
- 3

8
2,

16
2.

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
0

17
0,

00
0

   
17

0,
00

1
   

27
0,

00
0

   
27

0,
00

1
   

30
0,

00
0

   
30

0,
00

1
   

35
0,

00
0

   
35

0,
00

1
   

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 7
M

M
7 

- 1
8

1,
02

4.
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0
80

,0
00

   
  

80
,0

01
   

  
10

0,
00

0
   

10
0,

00
1

   
12

0,
00

0
   

12
0,

00
1

   
15

0,
00

0
   

15
0,

00
1

   
an

d 
ov

er
M

as
te

r M
et

er
 8

M
M

8 
- 1

1
62

6.
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

90
,0

00
   

  
90

,0
01

   
  

15
0,

00
0

   
15

0,
00

1
   

20
0,

00
0

   
20

0,
00

1
   

25
0,

00
0

   
25

0,
00

1
   

an
d 

ov
er

M
as

te
r M

et
er

 9
M

M
9 

- 1
1

62
6.

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
75

,0
00

   
  

75
,0

01
   

  
10

5,
00

0
   

10
5,

00
1

   
13

5,
00

0
   

13
5,

00
1

   
16

5,
00

0
   

16
5,

00
1

   
an

d 
ov

er
M

as
te

r M
et

er
 1

0
M

M
10

 - 
11

62
6.

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
60

,0
00

   
  

60
,0

01
   

  
12

0,
00

0
   

12
0,

00
1

   
19

0,
00

0
   

19
0,

00
1

   
22

0,
00

0
   

22
0,

00
1

   
an

d 
ov

er

St
an

d 
Pi

pe
CW

H
-

Fi
re

 H
yd

ra
nt

FH
Y

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 T

ur
n-

O
ff 

Po
lic

y 
- C

us
to

m
er

s m
ay

 re
qu

es
t t

he
ir 

w
at

er
 se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

tu
rn

ed
 o

ff 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
or

 p
er

m
an

en
tly

  a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e.

  I
f w

at
er

 se
rv

ic
e 

is 
of

f f
or

 le
ss

 th
an

 n
in

e 
(9

) m
on

th
s, 

at
 th

e
tim

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is 

re
-e

st
ab

lis
he

d,
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

e 
fe

e 
pl

us
 ta

x 
fo

r t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f m
on

th
s t

he
 w

at
er

 w
as

 o
ff.

  I
f w

at
er

 se
rv

ic
e 

is 
of

f f
or

 m
or

e 
th

an
 n

in
e 

(9
) m

on
th

s, 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

th
e 

N
ew

 A
cc

ou
nt

 S
et

-U
p 

Fe
e 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is 

re
-e

st
ab

lis
he

d.

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 M
ET

ER
S

M
AS

TE
R 

M
ET

ER
S

ST
AN

D 
PI

PE
   

  $
11

.5
0 

 p
er

 1
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

 - 
M

in
im

um
 B

ill
in

g 
$2

0.
00

 - 
Ad

di
tio

na
l K

ey
s $

20
.0

0

FI
RE

 H
YD

RA
N

T 
M

ET
ER

   
  $

8.
57

 p
er

 1
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

 a
ft

er
 th

e 
fir

st
 2

0,
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

$4
.8

4 
pe

r 1
,0

00
 g

al
.

$6
.5

0 
pe

r 1
,0

00
 g

al
.

$8
.5

6 
pe

r 1
,0

00
 g

al
.

$1
1.

06
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

.
$1

4.
37

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
.

RE
SI

DE
N

TI
AL

 M
ET

ER
S

CA
RE

FR
EE

 W
AT

ER
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y 
RA

TE
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

5
Be

fo
re

 T
ax

es

M
on

th
ly

 C
om

m
od

ity
 (U

sa
ge

) C
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

Ti
er

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

Ti
er

 1
Ti

er
 2

Ti
er

 3
Ti

er
 4

Ti
er

 5

greg
Text Box
3



Re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

$5
0.

00
$2

0.
00

Fi
re

 H
yd

ra
nt

$1
00

.0
0

St
at

e 
Sa

le
s T

ax
6.

3%
To

w
n 

Sa
le

s T
ax

3.
0%

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 T
ax

$0
.0

06
5

/1
,0

00
 g

al
. b

ill
ed

Re
sid

en
tia

l
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
St

an
d 

Pi
pe

Fi
re

 H
yd

r. 
M

et
er

M
et

er
 S

et
W

at
er

Ch
ar

ge
Ca

pa
ci

ty
 F

ee
1

To
ta

l
$1

,2
30

.0
0

$4
,6

40
.0

0
$5

,8
70

.0
0

$5
10

.0
0

-
$5

10
.0

0
$1

,7
14

.0
0

$8
,4

09
.0

0
$1

0,
12

3.
00

$2
,5

89
.0

0
$1

3,
06

1.
00

$1
5,

65
0.

00
$7

,7
00

.0
0

$2
6,

52
8.

00
$3

4,
22

8.
00

$1
1,

94
8.

00
$4

0,
64

7.
00

$5
2,

59
5.

00

$2
,6

90
.0

0
pe

r U
ni

t
$1

,3
45

.0
0

pe
r U

ni
t

$5
,3

79
.0

0
pe

r A
F 

of
 A

nn
ua

l D
em

an
d2

1 Di
st

rib
ut

io
n,

 S
to

ra
ge

, a
nd

 P
um

pi
ng

 C
ap

ac
ity

2 An
nu

al
 D

em
an

d 
Ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 a

nd
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
Ca

re
fr

ee
 W

at
er

 C
om

pa
ny

3 To
ta

l N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ch

ar
ge

s/
Fe

es
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

Ch
ar

ge
 +

 W
at

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
 +

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
Fe

e

SA
M

PL
E 

RE
SI

DE
N

TI
AL

 W
AT

ER
 B

IL
L 

CA
LC

U
LA

TI
O

N
4

1 
in

ch
 R

es
id

en
tia

l M
et

er
 (R

4/
R4

A 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n)

 @
 2

4,
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

Ti
er

 1
:

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
ga

llo
ns

@
4.

84
$ 

   
   

/1
00

0 
ga

l.
=

38
.7

2
$ 

   
 

=
38

.7
2

$ 
   

 
Ti

er
 2

:
12

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
ga

llo
ns

@
6.

50
$ 

   
   

/1
00

0 
ga

l.
=

78
.0

0
$ 

   
 

=
78

.0
0

$ 
   

 
Ti

er
 3

:
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

ga
llo

ns
@

8.
56

$ 
   

   
/1

00
0 

ga
l.

=
34

.2
4

$ 
   

 
=

34
.2

4
$ 

   
 

Ti
er

 4
:

0
ga

llo
ns

@
11

.0
6

$ 
   

 
/1

00
0 

ga
l.

=
-

$ 
   

   
  

=
-

$ 
   

   
  

Ti
er

 5
:

0
ga

llo
ns

@
14

.3
7

$ 
   

 
/1

00
0 

ga
l.

=
-

$ 
   

   
  

=
-

$ 
   

   
  

M
on

th
 T

ot
al

:
24

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
ga

llo
ns

Ba
se

 F
ee

59
.9

3
$ 

   
 

79
.9

3
$ 

   
 

 T
ot

al
 (D

oe
s n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
ta

xe
s)

21
0.

89
$ 

  
23

0.
89

$ 
  

4  A
 R

es
id

en
tia

l W
at

er
 B

ill
 C

al
cu

la
to

r i
s a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 o

ur
 w

eb
sit

e 
at

 w
w

w
.c

ar
ef

re
ew

at
er

co
.c

om

Al
l O

th
er

 (C
om

m
er

ci
al

, C
om

m
on

 A
re

a,
 

Irr
ig

at
io

n,
 e

tc
.)

O
rig

in
al

 W
at

er
Ac

qu
is

iti
on

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 (R
4)

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 (R
4A

)

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l

1"
 M

et
er

 -N
ew

 
U

na
ut

ho
riz

ed
 F

ire
 H

yd
ra

nt
 U

se
 - 

Pe
r U

se
$3

00
.0

0
1"

 M
et

er
 - 

U
pg

ra
de

 fr
om

 3
/4

"
1-

1/
2"

 M
et

er
2"

 M
et

er
3"

 M
et

er
4"

 M
et

er
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t C
at

eg
or

y
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

Fe
e

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l

U
na

ut
ho

riz
ed

 M
et

er
 T

ur
n-

O
n 

- R
es

id
en

tia
l

$1
50

.0
0

M
et

er
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

iz
e

U
na

ut
ho

riz
ed

 M
et

er
 T

ur
n-

O
n 

- C
om

m
er

ci
al

$2
50

.0
0

Th
ird

 P
ar

ty
 M

et
er

 T
es

t (
Cu

st
om

er
 R

eq
ue

st
)

At
 W

at
er

 C
o.

 C
os

t
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ca
ll 

O
ut

 
N

EW
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 C

HA
RG

ES
 A

N
D 

FE
ES

3
   

  (
If 

W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
 is

 N
ot

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r P

ro
bl

em
)

$1
00

.0
0

$5
0.

00
Ac

co
un

t R
e-

Es
ta

bl
ish

m
en

t F
ee

 (A
ft

er
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
)

$1
25

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
Ch

an
ge

-O
ut

 o
r M

ov
in

g 
M

et
er

At
 W

at
er

 C
o.

 C
os

t

RE
FU

N
DA

BL
E 

DE
PO

SI
TS

$2
50

.0
0

M
IS

CE
LL

AN
EO

U
S 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 A
N

D 
FE

ES
3X

 A
ve

ra
ge

 W
at

er
 B

ill
Da

ta
 L

og
 F

ee
 - 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
W

ith
 S

ec
on

d 
Da

ta
 L

og
$4

0.
00

Fo
re

ig
n 

M
ai

lin
g 

Fe
e

$3
.0

0
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t F
un

ds
 o

r R
et

ur
ne

d 
Ch

ec
k 

Fe
e

$3
0.

00
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 B

al
an

ce
 

1.
5%

 p
er

 m
on

th
 

   
O

th
er

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
ve

r $
50

0
3%

 o
f A

m
ou

nt
La

te
 P

ay
m

en
t o

r D
el

in
qu

en
t C

ha
rg

e 
(p

er
 m

on
th

)
$7

.0
0

TA
XE

S
Fo

re
ig

n 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

n
$1

0.
00

N
EW

 A
CC

O
U

N
T 

SE
TU

P 
FE

ES
PA

YM
EN

T 
AN

D 
BI

LL
IN

G
 F

EE
S

Cr
ed

it 
Ca

rd
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 F

ee
 (p

er
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n)
La

nd
lo

rd
 (T

ra
ns

fe
r t

o 
In

fo
 o

n 
Fi

le
)

   
M

on
th

ly
 B

ill
in

gs
 &

 O
th

er
 C

ha
rg

es
 U

nd
er

 $
50

0
$4

.0
0

greg
Text Box
4



Ca
re

fr
ee

 W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
5

 R
at

e 
Co

m
pa

ris
on

 S
he

et
 @

 4
.4

%
 B

as
e 

an
d 

Co
m

m
od

ity
 In

cr
ea

se

R1
, R

2 
&

 R
4

O
ve

ra
ll 

%
 

G
al

lo
ns

Cu
rr

en
t 

N
ew

 
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Cu
rr

en
t

N
ew

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Cu

rr
en

t
N

ew
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Cu
rr

en
t

N
ew

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Cu

rr
en

t
N

ew
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Ti

er
 1

 - 
$4

.8
4

1,
00

0
   

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

4.
64

4.
84

0.
20

62
.0

4
64

.7
7

2.
73

5.
78

6.
03

0.
25

67
.8

2
70

.8
0

2.
98

4.
4%

(C
ur

r -
 $

4.
64

)
2,

00
0

   
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
9.

28
9.

68
0.

40
66

.6
8

69
.6

1
2.

93
6.

21
6.

49
0.

27
72

.8
9

76
.1

0
3.

20
4.

4%
4,

00
0

   
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
18

.5
6

19
.3

6
0.

80
75

.9
6

79
.2

9
3.

33
7.

09
7.

40
0.

31
83

.0
5

86
.6

9
3.

64
4.

4%
6,

00
0

   
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
27

.8
4

29
.0

4
1.

20
85

.2
4

88
.9

7
3.

73
7.

97
8.

31
0.

35
93

.2
1

97
.2

8
4.

08
4.

4%
8,

00
0

   
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
37

.1
2

38
.7

2
1.

60
94

.5
2

98
.6

5
4.

13
8.

84
9.

23
0.

38
10

3.
36

10
7.

88
4.

51
4.

4%
Ti

er
 2

 - 
$6

.5
0

9,
00

0
   

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

43
.3

5
45

.2
2

1.
87

10
0.

75
10

5.
15

4.
40

9.
43

9.
84

0.
41

11
0.

18
11

4.
99

4.
81

4.
4%

(C
ur

r -
 $

6.
23

)
12

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

62
.0

4
64

.7
2

2.
68

11
9.

44
12

4.
65

5.
21

11
.1

9
11

.6
7

0.
48

13
0.

63
13

6.
32

5.
69

4.
4%

14
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
74

.5
0

77
.7

2
3.

22
13

1.
9

13
7.

65
5.

75
12

.3
6

12
.8

9
0.

53
14

4.
26

15
0.

54
6.

28
4.

4%
16

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

86
.9

6
90

.7
2

3.
76

14
4.

36
15

0.
65

6.
29

13
.5

3
14

.1
1

0.
58

15
7.

89
16

4.
76

6.
87

4.
4%

18
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
99

.4
2

10
3.

72
4.

30
15

6.
82

16
3.

65
6.

83
14

.7
0

15
.3

4
0.

64
17

1.
52

17
8.

99
7.

47
4.

4%
20

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

11
1.

88
11

6.
72

4.
84

16
9.

28
17

6.
65

7.
37

15
.8

7
16

.5
6

0.
69

18
5.

15
19

3.
21

8.
06

4.
4%

Ti
er

 3
 - 

$8
.5

6
22

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

12
8.

28
13

3.
84

5.
56

18
5.

68
19

3.
77

8.
09

17
.4

1
18

.1
6

0.
75

20
3.

09
21

1.
93

8.
84

4.
4%

(C
ur

r -
 $

8.
20

)
24

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

14
4.

68
15

0.
96

6.
28

20
2.

08
21

0.
89

8.
81

18
.9

5
19

.7
7

0.
82

22
1.

03
23

0.
66

9.
63

4.
4%

26
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
16

1.
08

16
8.

08
7.

00
21

8.
48

22
8.

01
9.

53
20

.4
9

21
.3

7
0.

89
23

8.
97

24
9.

38
10

.4
2

4.
4%

28
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
17

7.
48

18
5.

20
7.

72
23

4.
88

24
5.

13
10

.2
5

22
.0

3
22

.9
8

0.
95

25
6.

91
26

8.
11

11
.2

0
4.

4%
30

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

19
3.

88
20

2.
32

8.
44

25
1.

28
26

2.
25

10
.9

7
23

.5
6

24
.5

8
1.

02
27

4.
84

28
6.

83
11

.9
9

4.
4%

Ti
er

 4
 - 

$1
1.

06
32

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

21
5.

08
22

4.
44

9.
36

27
2.

48
28

4.
37

11
.8

9
25

.5
5

26
.6

5
1.

11
29

8.
03

31
1.

02
13

.0
0

4.
4%

(C
ur

r -
 $

10
.6

0)
35

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

24
6.

88
25

7.
62

10
.7

4
30

4.
28

31
7.

55
13

.2
7

28
.5

3
29

.7
6

1.
23

33
2.

81
34

7.
31

14
.5

0
4.

4%
40

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

29
9.

88
31

2.
92

13
.0

4
35

7.
28

37
2.

85
15

.5
7

33
.4

9
34

.9
4

1.
45

39
0.

77
40

7.
79

17
.0

2
4.

4%
45

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

35
2.

88
36

8.
22

15
.3

4
41

0.
28

42
8.

15
17

.8
7

38
.4

5
40

.1
1

1.
66

44
8.

73
46

8.
26

19
.5

3
4.

4%
50

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

40
5.

88
42

3.
52

17
.6

4
46

3.
28

48
3.

45
20

.1
7

43
.4

1
45

.2
9

1.
88

50
6.

69
52

8.
74

22
.0

5
4.

4%
Ti

er
 5

 - 
$1

4.
37

55
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
47

4.
73

49
5.

37
20

.6
4

53
2.

13
55

5.
3

23
.1

7
49

.8
5

52
.0

0
2.

15
58

1.
98

60
7.

30
25

.3
2

4.
4%

(C
ur

r -
 $

13
.7

7)
60

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

54
3.

58
56

7.
22

23
.6

4
60

0.
98

62
7.

15
26

.1
7

56
.2

8
58

.7
1

2.
43

65
7.

26
68

5.
86

28
.6

0
4.

4%
65

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

61
2.

43
63

9.
07

26
.6

4
66

9.
83

69
9

29
.1

7
62

.7
2

65
.4

3
2.

71
73

2.
55

76
4.

43
31

.8
8

4.
4%

70
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
68

1.
28

71
0.

92
29

.6
4

73
8.

68
77

0.
85

32
.1

7
69

.1
5

72
.1

4
2.

99
80

7.
83

84
2.

99
35

.1
6

4.
4%

80
,0

00
   

 
57

.4
0

59
.9

3
2.

53
81

8.
98

85
4.

62
35

.6
4

87
6.

38
91

4.
55

38
.1

7
82

.0
2

85
.5

7
3.

55
95

8.
40

10
00

.1
2

41
.7

2
4.

4%
90

,0
00

   
 

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

95
6.

68
99

8.
32

41
.6

4
1,

01
4.

08
1,

05
8.

25
44

.1
7

94
.8

9
99

.0
0

4.
11

1,
10

8.
97

1,
15

7.
25

48
.2

8
4.

4%
10

0,
00

0
  

57
.4

0
59

.9
3

2.
53

1,
09

4.
38

1,
14

2.
02

47
.6

4
1,

15
1.

78
1,

20
1.

95
50

.1
7

10
7.

77
11

2.
43

4.
67

1,
25

9.
55

1,
31

4.
38

54
.8

4
4.

4%

Av
er

ag
e 

Re
sid

en
tia

l U
sa

ge

Ba
se

 R
at

e
Co

m
m

od
ity

 C
ha

rg
e

Su
bt

ot
al

 B
ef

or
e 

Ta
xe

s
Ta

xe
s

To
ta

l W
ith

 T
ax

es

greg
Text Box
5



 6 

 

Profit and Loss Summary 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
• “All encompassing” spreadsheet to ensure cash flow needs are met (revenue stream 

matches expenditures) 
• Looks at anticipated revenues (primarily from water sales) in relation to anticipated 

expenditures (e.g., Cost of Water, General & Administrative, Replacement & Maintenance) 
• The Profit and Loss spreadsheet also includes other cash uses such as: 

o 2021 Series Bond Repayment (“Acquisition”) 
o WIFA Loan Repayment (“Capital Lease”) 
o Town of Carefree Repayment (“Capital Advance”) 
o Water Company Office/Shop Rent 
o Reserve Deposits 
o Capital Improvement Program 

• Bottom Line:  Revenue stream must cover all cash uses (cash flow/expenditures) 



Ju
ly

Au
g

 S
ep

t
O

ct
N

ov
De

c
Ja

n
Fe

b
M

ar
ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne

To
ta

l
Re

ve
nu

es
%

9.
9%

10
.4

%
9.

7%
9.

5%
8.

4%
7.

6%
6.

4%
6.

7%
6.

7%
7.

4%
8.

1%
9.

1%
10

0%
   

   
W

at
er

 S
al

es
50

5,
02

6
   

   
 

53
5,

72
3

   
   

 
48

6,
90

4
   

   
 

48
8,

46
2

   
   

 
43

4,
02

6
   

   
 

38
1,

86
5

   
   

 
33

1,
23

1
   

   
 

34
6,

65
2

   
   

 
33

4,
94

4
   

   
 

38
0,

57
0

   
   

   
  

41
6,

37
5

   
   

 
45

8,
69

1
   

   
 

5,
10

0,
46

9
   

   
 

   
   

N
ew

 M
et

er
 &

 S
er

vi
ce

 F
ee

s
3,

92
7

   
   

   
   

3,
92

7
   

   
   

   
3,

92
7

   
   

   
   

3,
92

7
   

   
   

   
3,

92
7

   
   

   
   

19
,6

35
   

   
   

   
 

   
  D

FG
C 

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 F

ee
s

7,
95

2
   

   
   

   
7,

95
1

   
   

   
   

7,
95

1
   

   
   

   
7,

95
1

   
   

   
   

31
,8

05
   

   
   

   
 

   
  C

el
l T

ow
er

 R
en

ta
l F

ee
s (

ne
t)

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

   
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

1,
83

3
   

   
   

   
21

,9
96

   
   

   
   

 
   

  O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
s

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
24

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

51
2,

78
6

   
   

 
53

9,
55

6
   

   
 

50
2,

61
6

   
   

 
49

2,
29

5
   

   
 

43
7,

85
9

   
   

 
39

7,
57

6
   

   
 

33
5,

06
4

   
   

 
35

0,
48

5
   

   
 

35
0,

65
5

   
   

 
38

4,
40

3
   

   
   

  
42

0,
20

8
   

   
 

47
4,

40
2

   
   

 
5,

19
7,

90
5

   
   

 

Co
st

 o
f W

at
er

   
   

Sc
ot

ts
da

le
 C

AP
12

1,
32

9
   

   
 

12
7,

44
9

   
   

 
11

6,
42

4
   

   
 

11
9,

78
7

   
   

 
98

,5
56

   
   

   
 

87
,8

21
   

   
   

 
73

,9
49

   
   

   
 

75
,9

58
   

   
   

 
82

,0
86

   
   

   
 

92
,9

68
   

   
   

   
 

10
4,

43
9

   
   

 
10

8,
65

4
   

   
 

1,
20

9,
42

0
   

   
 

   
  C

av
e 

Cr
ee

k 
CA

P
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
  G

ro
un

d 
W

at
er

 P
um

pe
d

$1
3,

53
7

$1
4,

14
0

$1
3,

05
3

$1
3,

38
5

$1
0,

83
2

$9
,8

23
$1

1,
01

9
$8

,7
08

$9
,2

84
$1

0,
30

7
$1

1,
38

5
$1

1,
78

1
13

7,
25

4
   

   
   

  
   

  C
en

tr
al

 A
riz

 P
ro

je
ct

 
$4

4,
19

8
$4

5,
79

2
$4

2,
92

1
$4

3,
79

7
$3

7,
05

7
$3

4,
39

2
$3

1,
49

8
$4

7,
01

2
$3

3,
58

0
$3

6,
36

3
$3

9,
29

7
$4

0,
37

5
47

6,
28

1
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l W

at
er

 C
os

ts
17

9,
06

4
   

   
 

18
7,

38
1

   
   

 
17

2,
39

8
   

   
 

17
6,

96
9

   
   

 
14

6,
44

5
   

   
 

13
2,

03
6

   
   

 
11

6,
46

6
   

   
 

13
1,

67
9

   
   

 
12

4,
94

9
   

   
 

13
9,

63
8

   
   

   
  

15
5,

12
0

   
   

 
16

0,
81

0
   

   
 

1,
82

2,
95

6
   

   
 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e
10

7,
45

6
   

   
 

10
7,

45
6

   
   

 
10

7,
45

7
   

   
 

10
7,

45
6

   
   

 
10

7,
45

6
   

   
 

10
7,

45
6

   
   

 
10

7,
45

7
   

   
 

10
7,

45
6

   
   

 
10

7,
45

6
   

   
 

10
7,

45
7

   
   

   
  

10
7,

45
6

   
   

 
10

7,
45

6
   

   
 

1,
28

9,
47

5
   

   
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
26

,3
54

   
   

   
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

 
26

,3
54

   
   

   
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

 
26

,3
54

   
   

   
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

 
26

,3
54

   
   

   
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

 
26

,3
54

   
   

   
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

   
 

26
,3

55
   

   
   

 
26

,3
55

   
   

   
 

31
6,

25
0

   
   

   
  

De
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
12

5,
00

0
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
12

5,
00

0
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
12

5,
00

0
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
12

5,
00

0
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
12

5,
00

0
   

   
   

  
12

5,
00

0
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

 
To

ta
l O

th
er

 C
os

ts
25

8,
81

0
   

   
 

25
8,

81
0

   
   

 
25

8,
81

1
   

   
 

25
8,

81
0

   
   

 
25

8,
81

0
   

   
 

25
8,

81
0

   
   

 
25

8,
81

1
   

   
 

25
8,

81
0

   
   

 
25

8,
81

0
   

   
 

25
8,

81
1

   
   

   
  

25
8,

81
1

   
   

 
25

8,
81

1
   

   
 

3,
10

5,
72

5
   

   
 

RE
VE

N
U

ES
 L

ES
S 

CO
ST

S
74

,9
12

   
   

   
 

93
,3

65
   

   
   

 
71

,4
07

   
   

   
 

56
,5

16
   

   
   

 
32

,6
04

   
   

   
 

6,
73

0
   

   
   

   
(4

0,
21

3)
   

   
  

(4
0,

00
4)

   
   

  
(3

3,
10

4)
   

   
  

(1
4,

04
6)

   
   

   
   

6,
27

7
   

   
   

   
54

,7
81

   
   

   
 

26
9,

22
4

   
   

   
  

CA
SH

 F
LO

W

Ca
sh

 F
lo

w
Ca

sh
 U

se
s

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s

N
et

 G
ai

n
26

9,
22

4
   

   
 

Re
se

rv
es

40
,0

00
   

   
   

 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
 

De
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

 
Bo

nd
 T

ru
st

ee
 F

ee
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

Sy
st

em
 A

ut
om

at
io

n 
&

 T
ec

h.
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t L
os

s W
/O

12
,0

00
   

   
   

 
Bo

nd
 P

ay
m

en
t 

1,
09

9,
50

0
   

 
Sy

st
em

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

18
6,

16
0

   
   

 
Ca

pi
ta

l A
dv

an
ce

 
48

,0
00

   
   

   
 

Ca
pi

ta
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t
55

,0
00

   
   

   
 

W
IF

A 
Pa

ym
en

t
24

4,
76

4
   

   
 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s
59

,0
00

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l A
va

ila
bl

e
1,

78
1,

22
4

   
 

U
CF

D 
Re

nt
33

,0
00

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
U

se
s

1,
46

6,
06

4
   

 
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l U
se

s
31

5,
16

0
   

   
 

Ca
sh

 A
va

ila
bl

e
31

5,
16

0
   

   
 

Ca
sh

 U
til

ize
d

31
5,

16
0

   
   

 

Ca
re

fr
ee

 W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
PR

O
FI

T 
AN

D
 L

O
SS

20
25

-2
02

6 
Bu

dg
et

I:\
20

25
-2

02
6 

Bu
dg

et
 D

oc
s\

03
 - 

Bu
dg

et
 S

pr
ea

ds
he

et
s\

M
eg

ha
ns

 C
ur

re
nt

 D
oc

s\
20

25
-2

02
6 

P 
an

d 
L,

 C
as

h 
Fl

ow
 S

ta
te

m
en

t -
 G

re
gs

 M
od

s 2
, 4

/2
8/

20
25

, 4
:1

4 
PM

greg
Text Box
7



 8 

 

Cost of Water Summary 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
• The cost of water is the Water Company’s single largest expense at just over $1.8M 
• Continued Focus on Utilizing Renewable CAP Supply (Saving GW for Emergencies) 

o 70/30 Split (CAP/Groundwater) 
• Overall water costs are increasing about $130,000 (7.9%) this FY due to the following: 

o 5% Increase in Scottsdale Treated Water Costs 
o 6% Increase in APS Costs 
o 14% Increase in CAP Raw Water Costs primarily due to Colorado River Shortage 

Conditions 
o Increase in service area size 

 
 

 



4/
23

/2
02

5

32
5.

85
1

Ju
ly

Au
g.

Se
pt

.
O

ct
. 

N
ov

.
De

c.
Ja

n.
Fe

b.
M

ar
ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

 
Ju

ne
To

ta
l 

PO
ST

-T
RA

N
SI

TI
O

N
 W

AT
ER

 U
SE

W
at

er
 S

ol
d 

FY
 2

4-
25

 (2
4 

O
nl

y)
AF

13
6.

2
12

7.
7

12
6.

7
13

3.
2

97
.4

93
.5

71
4.

7
W

at
er

 S
ol

d 
FY

 2
3-

24
AF

12
0.

7
14

2.
3

11
9.

7
12

0.
4

10
0.

8
82

.8
74

.3
78

.4
79

.9
93

.5
10

1.
3

11
1.

9
12

26
.0

W
at

er
 S

ol
d 

FY
 2

2-
23

 (2
3 

O
nl

y)
*

AF
73

.7
73

.7
84

.7
93

.3
10

8.
9

10
6.

9
54

1.
2

2-
yr

 A
ve

ra
ge

 W
at

er
 S

ol
d

AF
12

8.
5

13
5.

0
12

3.
2

12
6.

8
99

.1
88

.2
74

.0
76

.1
82

.3
93

.4
10

5.
1

10
9.

4
12

41
.0

2-
yr

 A
ve

ra
ge

 W
at

er
 S

ol
d 

- A
dj

. f
or

 L
as

t C
SA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 (U

se
 fo

r 2
5-

26
)

AF
12

9.
7

13
6.

4
12

4.
4

12
8.

1
10

0.
1

89
.0

74
.7

76
.8

83
.1

94
.3

10
6.

2
11

0.
5

12
53

.4
2-

yr
 A

ve
ra

ge
 W

at
er

 S
ol

d 
- A

dj
. f

or
 L

as
t C

SA
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 (U
se

 fo
r 2

5-
26

)
00

0 
Ga

l.
42

,2
74

44
,4

30
40

,5
46

41
,7

31
32

,6
15

29
,0

11
24

,3
54

25
,0

29
27

,0
86

30
,7

39
34

,5
89

36
,0

05
40

8,
40

8
Pe

rc
en

t o
f A

nn
ua

l U
sa

ge
 (U

se
 fo

r 2
5-

26
)

10
.4

%
10

.9
%

9.
9%

10
.2

%
8.

0%
7.

1%
6.

0%
6.

1%
6.

6%
7.

5%
8.

5%
8.

8%
10

0.
0%

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

ie
d 

(S
ol

d/
0.

9)
 (U

se
 fo

r 2
5-

26
)

AF
14

4.
1

15
1.

5
13

8.
3

14
2.

3
11

1.
2

98
.9

83
.0

85
.3

92
.4

10
4.

8
11

7.
9

12
2.

8
13

92
.6

* 
Ja

n 
th

ru
 A

pr
 A

ju
st

ed
 to

 R
ef

le
ct

 F
ul

l C
SA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 

Gr
ou

nd
 W

at
er

 A
.F

 (3
0%

)
43

.2
45

.5
41

.5
42

.7
33

.4
29

.7
24

.9
25

.6
27

.7
31

.4
35

.4
36

.8
41

7.
8

CA
P 

W
at

er
 A

.F
. (

70
%

)
10

0.
9

10
6.

1
96

.8
99

.6
77

.8
69

.2
58

.1
59

.7
64

.7
73

.4
82

.6
85

.9
97

4.
8

CA
P 

W
at

er
 A

.F
. +

5%
5.

0
5.

3
4.

8
5.

0
3.

9
3.

5
2.

9
3.

0
3.

2
3.

7
4.

1
4.

3
48

.7

CA
VE

 C
RE

EK
 W

AT
ER

0%
 o

f C
AP

 W
at

er
   

   
   

 A
cr

e-
Fe

et
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
   

   
   

 1
,0

00
's 

Ga
llo

ns
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

   
   

   
 C

os
t @

$X
.X

X/
1,

00
0 

Ga
l. 

To
ta

l C
os

t
TB

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

SC
O

TT
SD

AL
E 

W
AT

ER
10

0%
 o

f C
AP

 W
at

er
   

   
   

 A
cr

e-
Fe

et
10

0.
9

10
6.

1
96

.8
99

.6
77

.8
69

.2
58

.1
59

.7
64

.7
73

.4
82

.6
85

.9
97

4.
8

   
   

   
 1

,0
00

's 
Ga

llo
ns

32
,8

80
34

,5
56

31
,5

36
32

,4
58

25
,3

67
22

,5
64

18
,9

42
19

,4
67

21
,0

67
23

,9
08

26
,9

03
28

,0
04

31
7,

65
1

   
   

   
 C

os
t @

$3
.6

5/
1,

00
0 

Ga
l.*

$3
.6

5
$3

.8
3

$1
20

,0
12

$1
26

,1
31

$1
15

,1
06

$1
18

,4
70

$9
7,

15
6

$8
6,

42
1

$7
2,

54
8

$7
4,

55
8

$8
0,

68
5

$9
1,

56
8

$1
03

,0
38

$1
07

,2
54

$1
,1

92
,9

46
   

   
   

 M
et

er
 F

ee
$1

,3
17

.5
0

$1
,3

17
.5

0
$1

,3
17

.5
0

$1
,3

17
.5

0
$1

,4
00

.5
0

$1
,4

00
.5

0
$1

,4
00

.5
0

$1
,4

00
.5

0
$1

,4
00

.5
0

$1
,4

00
.5

0
$1

,4
00

.5
0

$1
,4

00
.5

0
$1

6,
47

4
* 

$3
.6

5/
1,

00
0 

Ga
l. 

U
nt

il 
N

ov
. 2

02
5 

(5
%

 In
cr

ea
se

 T
he

re
af

te
r -

 $
3.

83
)

To
ta

l C
os

t
$1

21
,3

29
$1

27
,4

49
$1

16
,4

24
$1

19
,7

87
$9

8,
55

6
$8

7,
82

1
$7

3,
94

9
$7

5,
95

8
$8

2,
08

6
$9

2,
96

8
$1

04
,4

39
$1

08
,6

54
$1

,2
09

,4
20

PO
TA

BL
E 

G
RO

U
N

DW
AT

ER
   

   
 P

um
pe

d 
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 (A

.F
. -

 F
ro

m
 A

bo
ve

)
43

.2
45

.5
41

.5
42

.7
33

.4
29

.7
24

.9
25

.6
27

.7
31

.4
35

.4
36

.8
41

7.
8

   
   

 P
um

pe
d 

Gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 ('
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

)
14

,0
91

14
,8

10
13

,5
15

13
,9

10
10

,8
72

9,
67

0
8,

11
8

8,
34

3
9,

02
9

10
,2

46
11

,5
30

12
,0

02
13

6,
13

6
   

   
 C

os
t @

$0
.8

4/
1,

00
0 

Ga
l. 

 (5
%

 In
cr

ea
se

)
$0

.8
4

$1
1,

83
7

$1
2,

44
0

$1
1,

35
3

$1
1,

68
5

$9
,1

32
$8

,1
23

$6
,8

19
$7

,0
08

$7
,5

84
$8

,6
07

$9
,6

85
$1

0,
08

1
$1

14
,3

54
$2

,5
00

$2
,5

00
   

   
 C

he
m

ic
al

s a
nd

 T
es

tin
g

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$1
,7

00
$1

,7
00

$2
0,

40
0

To
ta

l C
os

t
$1

3,
53

7
$1

4,
14

0
$1

3,
05

3
$1

3,
38

5
$1

0,
83

2
$9

,8
23

$1
1,

01
9

$8
,7

08
$9

,2
84

$1
0,

30
7

$1
1,

38
5

$1
1,

78
1

$1
37

,2
54

G
O

LF
 C

O
U

RS
E 

G
RO

U
N

DW
AT

ER
A.

F.
   

   
 A

.F
. P

um
pe

d 
(2

02
4)

28
9.

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 (2
02

3)
23

7.
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 (2

02
2)

18
4.

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 (3
-y

r A
ve

.)
23

7.
1

kW
h/

AF
$/

kW
h

(F
ro

m
 D

es
er

t F
or

es
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t)
   

   
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 C
os

t
74

5.
22

0.
18

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$2
,6

50
.4

5
$2

,6
50

.4
5

$3
1,

80
5

CA
P 

CO
ST

S
20

25
20

26
   

   
  C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
pe

r A
F)

$6
9

$6
9

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
0,

29
3

$1
23

,5
10

   
   

  D
el

iv
er

y 
Co

st
 (p

er
 A

F)
$2

95
$3

04
$3

1,
25

5
$3

2,
84

9
$2

9,
97

8
$3

0,
85

4
$2

4,
11

4
$2

1,
44

9
$1

8,
55

5
$1

9,
06

9
$2

0,
63

7
$2

3,
42

0
$2

6,
35

4
$2

7,
43

2
$3

05
,9

66
   

   
  C

AP
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
$1

5,
00

0
$1

5,
00

0
To

ta
l C

os
t

$4
1,

54
8

$4
3,

14
1

$4
0,

27
0

$4
1,

14
6

$3
4,

40
6

$3
1,

74
2

$2
8,

84
8

$4
4,

36
2

$3
0,

92
9

$3
3,

71
2

$3
6,

64
6

$3
7,

72
4

$4
44

,4
76

AL
L 

W
AT

ER
 C

O
ST

S
$1

79
,0

64
$1

87
,3

81
$1

72
,3

98
$1

76
,9

69
$1

46
,4

45
$1

32
,0

36
$1

16
,4

66
$1

31
,6

79
$1

24
,9

49
$1

39
,6

38
$1

55
,1

20
$1

60
,8

10
$1

,8
22

,9
56

 

Ac
re

-F
ee

t

   
   

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 W
ith

dr
aw

al
 F

ee
 (A

DW
R)

Ca
re

fr
ee

 W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
Es

tim
at

ed
 W

at
er

 C
os

ts
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
02

5-
26

greg
Text Box
9



10 

 

 
 

General and Administrative (G&A) Summary 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
• Overall G&A expenses up 9% (up approx. $111,000) compared to last FY 

o Regulatory Requirements ($125,000) 
 Lead Service Line Inventory 
 ERP and R&R – AWIA Requirements 

o Payroll Costs Up 4% - $37,500 - includes: 
 4.5% COLA – All employees 
 Addition of one part-time Office Staff for entire year 



2024-2025 2025-2026
Budget Budget Difference

Payroll, Payroll Taxes, Group Insurance & Benefits
   Base Salaries 611,904       648,355       
   Overtime 5,000           5,000           
   Compensation Time 2,000           2,000           
   Bonus 4,500           5,000           

Merit Increase -              -              
   Emgr. On-Call 14,600         14,600         
   All Health Insurance Combined 50,995         48,664         
   IRA and Retirement 60,261         60,371         
   All Payroll taxes 43,176         45,467         
   Medicare 9,251           9,787           
   Unemployment -              -              
   Equalization Taxes -              -              

801,686       839,244       37,558 4%

Training Expense A/C 60154 10,000         10,000         0 0%

Employee Expenses A/C 60152
   Uniforms 4,500           4,500           

4,500           4,500           0 0%

Safety Equipment A/C 60156
Personal Protective Equipment 2,000           2,000           
Safety Equipment 2,000           2,000           

4,000           4,000           0 0%

Accounting  and Professional Services  A/C 60201
Auditors 7,550           6,006           
Part Time office help 56,500         -              
Dasco 2,500           2,500           
ER System 6,000           6,000           
Payroll Experts 3,000           3,000           

75,550         17,506         (58,044) -332%

Legal A/C 60202 5,000           5,000           0 0%

Cleaning Service A/C 60204
   Regular 6,000           6,000           

6,000           6,000           0 0%

General and Administrative  Budget by Category
 for 2025-26

greg
Text Box
11



SCADA A/C 60207
SCADA 5,000           5,000           
Specter - WIN 911 800              1,000           

5,800           6,000           200 3%

Computer A/C 60205
UMS Annual Fee 6,000           6,000           
Sage 6,000           5,000           
Beacon Mobile 5,000           5,000           
Computer Repair Contract 16,000         16,000         
Computer Repair additional hours 4,000           4,000           
Printer 500              500              
Meter Tablet 2,000           2,000           
Fixed Asset Software 300              300              
Server Warranty Care Pack 1,500           2,000           
Firewall 140              640              

41,440         41,440         0 0%

Insurance A/C 60250
Cincinnati Insurance 60,816         61,145         

   Claims (Insurance Deductible- Contingency) 5,000           5,000           
65,816         66,145         329 0%

Postage A/C 60300
   Billings 9,000           11,000         

Additional mailings 1,000           1,000           
10,000         12,000         2,000 17%

Telephone A/C 60351
Cox 3,500           2,700           
Verizon 5,000           4,500           
Replacement Cell Phones 1,200           1,200           

9,700           8,400           (1,300) -15%

greg
Text Box
12



Promotional A/C 60353
Truck Magnets 250              250              
Advertisement 500              550              

750              800              50 6%

Auto Expense A/C 60400
   Repairs, batteries, tires 5,000           8,500           
   Fuel * 29,500         26,000         
   Fuel Adj.(Potential Increase) 3,000           3,000           

37,500         37,500         0 0%

 
Office Supplies A/C 60452
   Printing 6,200           6,200           

Stuffing Machine Annual Maint. 2,700           2,850           
   All Other 4,500           4,500           

13,400         13,550         150 1%

Security and Emergency A/C 60453
   Safeguard - Office 750              750              

750              750              0 0%

Office Utilities A/C 60454 5,700           7,090           1,390 20%

Fees and Permits A/C 60501
   Maricopa County 3,300           3,620           
   ACC 50                50                
   Carefree Shadows HOA 125              125              

Town License 40                40                
3,515           3,835           320 8%

Dues and Subscriptions A/C 60456
   Blue Stake 1,000           1,000           
   AWWA Membership 420              450              

Rural Water Association 1,500           1,300           
WEF 210              210              
AZ Water Association 250              250              
American Society of Civil Engineers 300              200              
Water Operator Certifications 750              750              

4,430           4,160           (270) -6%

greg
Text Box
13



Office Equipment Rental A/C 60457
    Postage Machine 1,800           1,800           

1,800           1,800           0 0%

Bad Debt Write-off A/C 60550 4,000           4,000           0 0%

Loss Write Off - Meters 12,000         12,000         0 0%

Income Tax
   State 55                55                

55                55                0 0%

Credit Card Charges A/C 60652 9,000           12,500         3,500 28%

Bank Charges A/C  60653 
   All Other Banks 500              500              
   Chase  (Electronic Banking) 11,000         11,000         

11,500         11,500         0 0%

GIS Mapping A/C 60206
GPS Annual Fee 1,500           1,000           
Monthly MIFI Fee 600              1,200           
Support 20,000         20,000         
Elements Annual Maintenance 10,000         10,000         

32,100         32,200         100 0%

Water Conservation Costs A/C 6100
   Literature/Community Events 2,500           2,500           

2,500           2,500           0 0%

Regulatory Expense A/C TBD
Lead Service Line -              75,000         
ERP/ Resiliency -              50,000         

-              125,000       125,000 100%

Total Costs 1,178,492    1,289,475    110,983 9%

greg
Text Box
14



 

15 
 

 
 

Replacement and Maintenance (R&M) Summary 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
• Funds the normal water system maintenance (items we do everyday) 
• Unscheduled repair/replacement costs are the hardest to predict 
• Utilized historical expenses from the last 3 years, plus knowledge of what needs to be done 
• Budget is up 4% this fiscal year, $13,500, reflecting: 

o Additional R&M in for expanded service area  
o Material/Contract Labor/Equipment Rental Increases 
o Supply-Chain Related Issues Have Improved 



2024-2025 2025-2026 Variance Percentage
Budget Budget

R & M Tanks
Tank Maint. 36,600 36,185

Misc. 3,000 3,000
39,600 39,185 (415) -1%

R & M Pumps and Wells
Pumps Stations 11,000 11,000
Wells 6,000 6,000

17,000 17,000 0 0%

R & M Mains and Valves
   Valves 35,000 35,000

Mains Repairs 62,250 72,250
   Other Distribution Repairs 0 0

97,250 107,250 10,000 10%

R & M Services/Meters 60,000 60,000 0 0%

R & M Easements & Right of Way Landscape 2,000 3,000 1,000 50%

R & M Equipment
   Backhoe  4,500 2,500

Ditch Witch 2,000 2,000
Mini Excavator 1,500 2,500

   Trucks 7,000 10,000
   Chlorination 2,000 2,000

Town Equipment Cost Sharing 4,000 5,000
21,000 24,000 3,000 14%

Fire Hydrant Maintenance 25,000 15,000 (10,000) -40%

R & M Generator 20,000 25,000 5,000 25%

R & M Interconnect 3,000 6,000 3,000 100%

R & M Supplies 10,000 12,000 2,000 20%

Replacement and Maintenance Budget
2025-2026

greg
Text Box
16



R & M General
   AC Units 3,500 3,500
   Fire Protection 700 700

Exterminating 615 615
4,815 4,815 0 0%

Equipment Rental 3,000 3,000 0 0%
   

Total Maint. and Replacement 302,665 316,250 13,585 4%

greg
Text Box
17



 18 

 

 
RESERVE BALANCE RECOMMENDATIONS/CALCULATION 

(Originally Updated for FY 24-25) 
 
Operating Reserve 
AWWA Recommendation1:  45-90 days 

Use a 60 day (2 month) Operating Reserve 
FY 23-24 Operating Budget:  $3.0 M 
($3.0 M/12 months) x 2 months = $500,000 

 

Repair and Replacement Reserves 
AWWA Recommendation1:  1% – 2% of Original Asset Value 

Use 1% of Original Asset Value 
Original Asset Value = $30.9 M 
$30.9 M x 1.0% = $309,000 
 

Contingency 
AWWA Recommendation1:  Open 

Use a Conservative Approach in Other Categories and Defer Additional Contingency 
 

Debt Reserves 
AWWA Recommendation1:  120% of Annual Debt Service 

Base Fee in Rates Essentially Pays Annual Debt Service 
Use 50% of Annual Series 2021 Bond Debt Service for Reserves 
Annual Debt Service = $1.1M 
$1.1M x 50% = $550,000 

 

Total Target Reserves:  $500,000 + $309,000 + $0 + $550,000 = $1,359,000  Use $1.4M 
 

New Target:   $1,400,000 
Previous Target: $1,000,000 
Increase:  $   400,000 over 10 years  $40,000/yr. 
 
Recommendation for FY’s 24-25 thru 33-34:  $40,000 Reserve Deposit/year 

 
1AWWA:  American Water Works Association 



 19 

 

 
 

Capital Improvement Program Recommendations 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 

 
Total FY 25-26 Capital Budget - $315,160 

o Fire Protection – $15,000 (3 Replacement Hydrants) 
o System Automation and Technology - $0 
o System Improvements – $186,160 
o Capital Equipment Fund - $55,000 
o Water Rights - $59,000 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DETAILS 
 
Fire Protection - $15,000 

• 3 Replacement Fire Hydrant Installations 
 
System Automation and Technology - $0 

• SCADA System Upgrades 
 
System Improvements - $186,160 

• Annual Meter Replacements - $25,000 
• Pipeline Upgrade Projects - $161,160 

 
Capital Equipment Account – $55,000 (Annual FY 25-26 Deposit)*  

* See Attached 10-year Capital Equipment Plan 
 

Water Rights – $59,000 
 NIA Payment  (Last Payment) $16,000 
 Modified Bartlett Dam $43,000 
    Total $59,000 
 



Li
ne

 It
em

C
at

eg
or

y
25

-2
6

26
-2

7
27

-2
8

28
-2

9
29

-3
0

30
-3

1
31

-3
2

32
-3

3
33

-3
4

34
-3

5
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
   

  N
um

be
r o

f F
ire

 H
yd

ra
nt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

42
   

  F
ire

 H
yd

ra
nt

s 
- C

os
t

15
,0

00
$ 

   
  

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

  
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  

Sy
st

em
 A

ut
om

at
io

n 
an

d 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

   
  S

C
AD

A 
Sy

st
em

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

  
12

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
   

  B
ill

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 U

pg
ra

de
s

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

  
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
18

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  

Sy
st

em
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
   

  A
nn

ua
l M

et
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
Ty

pi
ca

lly
 1

50
 p

er
 y

ea
r)

25
,0

00
$ 

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
60

,0
00

$ 
   

  
60

,0
00

$ 
   

  
65

,0
00

$ 
   

  
65

,0
00

$ 
   

  
65

,0
00

$ 
   

  
56

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
   

  V
al

ve
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
  

29
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

   
  P

ip
el

in
e 

U
pg

ra
de

 P
ro

je
ct

s
16

1,
16

0
$ 

   
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

 
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
2,

86
1,

16
0

$ 
   

  
3,

71
1,

16
0

$ 
   

  

C
ap

ita
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t
   

  A
nn

ua
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

n*
*

55
,0

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
   

 
57

,5
00

$ 
   

   
 

57
,5

00
$ 

   
   

 
57

,5
00

$ 
   

   
57

,5
00

$ 
   

  
57

,5
00

$ 
   

  
57

,5
00

$ 
   

  
57

,5
00

$ 
   

  
57

,5
00

$ 
   

  
57

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
57

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s
   

  N
on

-In
di

an
 A

g 
C

AP
16

,0
00

$ 
   

  
16

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
   

  N
ew

 B
ar

tle
tt 

D
am

43
,0

00
$ 

   
  

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

  
32

5,
00

0
$ 

   
  

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

  
32

5,
00

0
$ 

   
 

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

32
5,

00
0

$ 
   

2,
96

8,
00

0
$ 

   
  

   
  S

C
IF

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

 
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
80

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
3,

78
4,

00
0

$ 
   

  

   
  

To
ta

l F
Y 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
31

5,
16

0
$ 

   
77

7,
50

0
$ 

   
  

90
7,

50
0

$ 
   

  
93

7,
50

0
$ 

   
  

88
7,

50
0

$ 
   

 
88

7,
50

0
$ 

   
89

2,
50

0
$ 

   
92

7,
50

0
$ 

   
97

2,
50

0
$ 

   
89

7,
50

0
$ 

   
8,

40
2,

66
0

$ 
   

  
8,

40
2,

66
0

$ 
   

  

C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

C
AR

EF
R

EE
 W

AT
ER

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

10
-Y

EA
R

 C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

AN
FY

 2
5-

26
 T

H
R

U
 F

Y 
34

-3
5

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r (

FY
)

greg
Text Box
20



Pr
io

rit
y

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Li

ne
al

 F
ee

t
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t
1

Si
lv

er
 S

ad
dl

e 
Gr

av
ity

 Z
on

e 
U

pg
ra

de
s -

 P
h.

 1
*

4,
05

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
02

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

2
Gr

an
dv

ie
w

 E
st

at
es

 - 
Ph

. 1
4,

09
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

04
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
3

Bl
ac

k 
M

tn
. F

oo
th

ill
s -

 P
h.

 1
2,

57
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

28
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
4

Sp
an

ish
 B

oo
t/

Go
ld

en
 S

pu
r -

 P
h.

 1
3,

02
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

36
1,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
5

Gr
an

dv
ie

w
 E

st
at

es
 - 

Ph
. 2

2,
57

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
15

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

6
Bl

ac
k 

M
tn

. F
oo

th
ill

s -
 P

h.
 2

3,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
53

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

7
Sp

an
ish

 B
oo

t/
Go

ld
en

 S
pu

r -
 P

h.
 2

1,
82

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

82
1,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8
Si

lv
er

 S
ad

dl
e 

Gr
av

ity
 Z

on
e 

U
pg

ra
de

s -
 P

h.
 2

5,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
34

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

9
M

ilk
y 

W
ay

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

U
pg

ra
de

s
2,

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
86

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

Si
de

w
in

de
r F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s

3,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
28

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
Ca

re
fr

ee
 D

riv
e 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

U
pg

ra
de

s
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
34

,0
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,5

09
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 

* 
Fe

de
ra

l C
om

m
un

ity
 G

ra
nt

 F
un

di
ng

 o
f $

80
0,

00
0 

Av
ai

la
bl

e

PI
PE

LI
N

E 
U

PG
RA

DE
 P

RO
JE

CT
S 

- P
RI

O
RI

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
S

10
-Y

EA
R 

CA
PI

TA
L 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

AN
FY

 2
5-

26
 T

HR
U

 F
Y 

34
-3

5

greg
Text Box
21



25
-2

6
26

-2
7

27
-2

8
28

-2
9

29
-3

0
30

-3
1

31
-3

2
32

-3
3

33
-3

4
34

-3
5

Ve
hi

cl
es

 a
nd

 H
ea

vy
 E

qu
ip

.
   

  F
ie

ld
 T

ru
ck

 #
1

40
,0

00
$ 

   
  

40
,0

00
$ 

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  F

ie
ld

 T
ru

ck
 #

2
40

,0
00

$ 
   

  
40

,0
00

$ 
   

  
   

  T
ow

in
g 

Tr
uc

k 
#3

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
70

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

14
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  G

M
 T

ru
ck

 #
4

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
40

,0
00

$ 
   

  
   

  S
up

er
vi

so
r T

ru
ck

 #
5

40
,0

00
$ 

   
  

40
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  T

ow
in

g 
Tr

uc
k 

#6
70

,0
00

$ 
   

  
70

,0
00

$ 
   

  
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  B
ac

kh
oe

 (5
0/

50
 C

os
t S

pl
it 

w
/T

ow
n)

80
,0

00
$ 

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  V

ac
to

r E
qu

pm
en

t (
D

itc
h 

W
itc

h)
70

,0
00

$ 
   

  
70

,0
00

$ 
   

  
   

  L
ar

ge
 T

oo
ls

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

  

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 &

 M
is

c.
 (C

om
pu

te
rs

, P
rin

te
rs

, W
or

k 
St

at
io

ns
, e

tc
.)

   
  C

om
pu

te
r R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 ($
15

00
/c

om
pu

te
r)

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
13

,5
00

$ 
   

  
   

  S
er

ve
r a

nd
 C

om
po

ne
nt

s
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

11
,0

00
$ 

   
  

22
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  M

et
er

 R
ea

di
ng

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

U
pg

ra
de

s
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

24
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  

To
ta

l F
Y 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
82

,5
00

$ 
   

   
 

45
,0

00
$ 

   
  

16
1,

00
0

$ 
   

48
,0

00
$ 

   
  

70
,0

00
$ 

   
  

64
,0

00
$ 

   
  

43
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
78

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

78
,0

00
$ 

   
  

45
,0

00
$ 

   
  

71
4,

50
0

$ 
   

Pr
io

r F
Y 

B
al

an
ce

11
0,

23
6

$ 
   

  
87

,7
36

$ 
   

  
10

5,
23

6
$ 

   
6,

73
6

$ 
   

   
 

21
,2

36
$ 

   
  

13
,7

36
$ 

   
  

12
,2

36
$ 

   
   

 
31

,7
36

$ 
   

   
 

16
,2

36
$ 

   
  

73
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
An

nu
al

 F
Y 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
   

 
57

,5
00

$ 
   

   
 

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
,5

00
$ 

   
  

57
2,

50
0

$ 
   

M
is

c.
 S

al
es

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
  

En
d 

of
 F

Y 
B

al
an

ce
87

,7
36

$ 
   

   
 

10
5,

23
6

$ 
   

6,
73

6
$ 

   
   

 
21

,2
36

$ 
   

  
13

,7
36

$ 
   

  
12

,2
36

$ 
   

  
31

,7
36

$ 
   

   
 

16
,2

36
$ 

   
   

 
73

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
,2

36
$ 

   
  

C
ap

ita
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

C
AR

EF
R

EE
 W

AT
ER

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

10
-Y

EA
R

 C
AP

IT
AL

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
PR

O
G

R
AM

FY
 2

5-
26

 T
H

R
U

 F
Y 

34
-3

5

10
-Y

r T
ot

al

greg
Text Box
22



23 

 

Water Supply Fee 
Carefree Water Company – FY 25-26 Update 

 
PURPOSE 
This report presents recommendations to update the one-time “Water Supply Fee” for new development and 
redevelopment projects within the service area of the Carefree Water Company.  This fee was originally approved in 
FY 22-23.  The purpose of the Water Supply Fee is two-fold: 
 

1) Collect from new development and redevelopment projects their reasonable share of costs already expended 
for securing water supplies and water rights. 

2) Provide the Water Company one mechanism to facilitate and fund the acquisition of new water supplies to 
bolster Carefree’s water portfolio. 

 
BACKGROUND AND HISTORY 
A significant amount of planning and capital expenditures have been committed to assure that Carefree has an adequate 
supply of water into the future.  Our existing customer base has fully paid for these efforts. 
 
The current drought situation within the western United States and particularly the desert southwest has highlighted 
the fact that our water supplies and water rights are limited resources.  These resources are likely to be curtailed in 
times of drought. 
 
In order for Carefree to have an adequate supply of water into the future, we must manage and plan our finite water 
resources today and balance those resources with the need for reasonable growth, redevelopment, and revitalization. 
 
CURRENT SUPPLY SITUATION 
The Carefree Water Company has secured the following water supplies which will be used as shown below in the 
Water Supply Fee calculation: 
 

Water Supply Year Obtained 
Amount Used in Fee Calculation 

[Acre Feet (AF)/yr] 
CAP M&I (Original Allocation) 1990 400 
CAP M&I (BHP Reallocation) 2001 900 
CAP NIA (60% Availability Assumed) 2021   67 (112 x 0.6) 
CAP M&I (Cave Creek Transfer) 2023 378 
Groundwater Grandfathered   500* 
Total  2245 

* Annual groundwater pumping shown (500 AF) is the maximum non-emergency groundwater volume established in the Scottsdale Treatment and 
Transportation Agreement.  The only other legal limitation is Carefree’s historic groundwater pumping capability. 
 
 
Carefree has obtained various CAP water rights over its history as detailed in the table above.  The Carefree Water 
Company also has the right to pump groundwater within the Carefree Subbasin which is part of the East Salt River 
Valley aquifer.  Although we exercise this right every year, the Arizona Department of Water Resources does not 
consider this groundwater resource as an “assured supply” that is continually available for the next 100-years and 
therefore we cannot utilize our groundwater resources to support new subdivision development within the Carefree 
community.  Subdivision development is regulated by the ADWR and must obtain a “Certificate of Assured Water 
Supply” in order to be approved for development.  Recent dealings with ADWR have indicated that currently only 
Carefree’s CAP M&I allocations can be utilized to demonstrate water availability to meet our existing demand and 
future demand for assured water supply purposes. 
 
FUTURE SUPPLY SITUATION 
The original Water Supply Fee calculations performed for FY 22-23 used simplifying assumptions in order to generate 
a reasonable Water Supply Fee until additional details on the amount and cost of future supplies were obtained.  These 
original assumptions were conservatively low in order to not inflate the initial Water Supply Fee.  This Water Supply 
Fee update contains more clarity on the cost of future water supplies, even though there are still cost uncertainties. 
 



24 

 

The future water supply assumption for this analysis continues to be new Bartlett Dam water rights.  This new Bartlett 
Dam water would only be used to “firm”, or back-up, Carefree’s current CAP supply and/or reduce our groundwater 
pumping.  Thus, new Bartlett Dam water is not considered an additional water supply even though 1,155 AF of storage 
behind new Bartlett Dam would result in an average of yield of 330 AF of water annually. 
 
For Carefree, new Bartlett Dam water would be delivered to the CAP canal through the future Salt River/CAP 
Interconnection Facility (SCIF), allowing delivery of this water to one of our neighboring communities that we have 
Treatment and Transportation Agreements with (Scottsdale and Cave Creek).  This still appears to be a the most likely 
future water resource from a cost and viability perspective. 
 
WATER SUPPLY FEE 
Appendix A contains the methodology and calculation for a Water Supply Fee update to $5,379/AF.  The Policy 
Statements below provides guidance on how this fee will be applied. 
 
POLICY STATEMENTS AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDANCE 

1) All single-family residential units (SFRs) are assumed to require 0.5 AF/yr of water supply/water rights, 
setting the Water Supply Fee at $2,690 per SFR dwelling unit. 

2) All multi-family residential units (MFRs) are assumed to require 0.25 AF/yr of water supply/water rights, 
setting the Water Supply Fee at $1,345 per MFR dwelling unit. 

3) The Water Supply Fee for all other future water uses (commercial, irrigation, subdivision common areas 
including pools and recreational facilities, etc.) shall utilize the fee amount of $5,379/AF multiplied by a 
calculated annual water demand.  The calculated annual water demand shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Carefree Water Company.  Carefree Water Company staff shall develop and implement future policies 
and procedures for the calculation of annual water demand calculations to ensure consistency and 
reasonableness. 

4) Any future water use and proposed project that has an annual water demand greater than 15 AF is deemed to 
have a significant impact on Carefree’s existing water resources and may be required to provide a viable 
source of water that is physically available to the Carefree Water Company in lieu of payment of the Water 
Supply Fee.  Proposed projects meeting this criterion will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in consultation 
with the Town of Carefree considering the nature of the development, the volume of annual water needed, 
and best interest of the Town of Carefree and Carefree Water Company.  

5) It is the intent of this policy to protect the Carefree/Cave Creek Groundwater Subbasin and to that extent, 
any water resource that would require direct or indirect use of groundwater within the Subbasin would not 
qualify as a viable source of water. 

6) Redevelopment/revitalization projects shall qualify for a reasonable “credit” for existing annual water 
demand based on historic water use at a property.  This historic annual water use shall be reviewed and 
approved by the Carefree Water Company and is exempt from the Water Supply Fee.  The Water Supply Fee 
does apply to all newly generated annual water demand. 

7) Rebuilding/refurbishing existing SFRs and MFRs are exempt from Water Supply Fees as long as the usage 
on the property remains SFR or MFR, even if characteristics change (i.e. total square footage changes, 
number of water fixtures changes, etc.). 

8) Any land division that generates a new developable lot will require a Water Supply Fee at the time of 
development. 

9) Water Supply Fees can be included/acknowledged in negotiated Development Agreements. 
10) Water Supply Fees cannot be “prepaid”.  Water supply Fees may only be paid at the time of 

development/redevelopment permit issuance. 
11) Water Supply Fees once paid, are non-refundable. 

  



25 

 

 
APPENDIX A 

VALUE/COST OF CURRENT AND FUTURE WATER SUPPLIES 
 

Original CAP M&I Allocation and Cave Creek Transfer – 778 AF 
Basis of water supply valuation 

• CAP M&I Capital Charges (paid regardless of water usage) – 1993 thru 2024 
o Assumed Time Value of Money - 5% 
o 2024 Per AF Value - $2,390.11/AF 
o Total 2024 Value of Water Rights (778 AF x $2,390.11/AF) = $1,859,505.58 

 
Supplemental CAP M&I Allocation (BHP Copper) – 900 AF 

Basis of water supply valuation 
• Upfront Cost - $329,389.15 

o Assumed Time Value of Money - 5% (2001 thru 2024) 
o 2024 Value - $1,011,726.60 

• CAP M&I Capital Charges (paid regardless of water usage) – 2001 thru 2024 
o Time Value of Money - 5% 
o 2024 Per AF Value - $1,172.81/AF 
o 2024 Value - $1,055,529.00 

• Total 2024 Value of Water Rights = $1,011,726.60 + $1,055,529.00 = $2,067,255.60 
 
Supplemental CAP NIA Allocation – (60% Availability = 112 AF x 0.6 = 67 AF) 

Basis of water supply valuation 
• Upfront Cost - $219,688.00 
 

Groundwater – (500 AF) 
• Upfront Capital Cost - $0 

 
Future Allocations – New Bartlett Dam Water & Salt River/CAP Interconnect Facility (SCIF) - 200 AF** 

Basis of water supply valuation 
• New Bartlett Dam Water Estimate - $6,930,000.00 ($9,900/AF of capacity) 
• SCIF Estimate = $1,000,000.00 
• Total = $11,434,500.00/AF + $1,000,000.00 = $7,930,000.00 

** Assumes a New Bartlett Dam long-term average storage yield of 200 AF/yr of water supply from a Bartlett Dam 
storage capacity of 700 AF.  This water will only be used to “firm”, or back-up existing supplies and/or reduce 
groundwater pumping, therefore, no new water supplies are assumed to be generated from participation in the new 
Bartlett Dam project. 
 
Cost Allocation – Future Development and Redevelopment 

Assumptions 
• A cost for all current and anticipated water supplies will be calculated and weighted on a per acre-foot 

basis considering all water supplies reasonably available to Carefree.  
• Future development’s and redevelopment’s share of these water supply costs will be based on this 

weighted per acre-foot calculation. 
 

Calculation 
CAP Allocation – Original & CC Transfer  $  1,859,505.58 
CAP Allocation – BHP Copper   $  2,067,255.60 
CAP Allocation – NIA Water   $     219,688.00 
Groundwater      $                0.00 
Bartlett & SCIF     $  7,930,000.00 
    TOTAL  $12,076,449.18/2245AF = $5,379/AF 
 

 



Agenda Item #  4.
TOWN OF CAREFREE

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:
 

05/06/2025
 

SUBJECT:
 

Review, discussion, and possible action on Resolution 2025-01      
approving the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree UCFD budget and the        
proposed FY 25-26 Carefree Water Company budget, rates, fees, and        
charges and calling for a Public Hearing.
 

PREPARED BY: Greg Crossman, Carefree Water Company Manager

SUMMARY:
Attached for your review prior to the May 6, 2025, Board meeting is Resolution 2025-01.

Resolution 2025-01 accomplishes the following items which are legally required as part of the
annual budgeting process for the Carefree UCFD and the Water Company:
•    Approves the proposed FY 25-26 District budget
•    Approves the proposed FY 25-26 Water Company rates, fees, deposits, and charges
•    Orders a Public Hearing

Please contact Greg Crossman (480-488-9100; greg@carefreewaterco.com) with any questions.
 

ACTION NEEDED:
Approval of Resolution 2025-01.

Attachments
Resolution 2025-01
 



 
 

  

TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
CAREFREE WATER COMPANY 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-01

 
A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CAREFREE WATER COMPANY, INC. APPROVING A PROPOSED 
DISTRICT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2025 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026; APPROVING PROPOSED 
CAREFREE WATER COMPANY RATES, FEES, DEPOSITS, AND 
CHARGES APPLICABLE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
JULY 1, 2025 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026; AND ORDERING A 
PUBLIC HEARING ON SUCH PROPOSED BUDGET AND RATES, 
FEES, DEPOSITS, AND CHARGES AS APPROVED. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) Section 48-716, the 
District Treasurer of the Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities Community Facilities District 
(the “District”) prepared and submitted to the Board of Directors of the District (the “District 
Board”) for approval a proposed District budget for Fiscal Year 2025/26 (the “Proposed 
Budget”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carefree Water Company, Inc. (the “Water Company”), is 
concurrently presenting to the Water Company Board of Directors and the District Board 
the proposed rates, fees, deposits, and charges applicable for Fiscal Year 2025/26, and 
such proposed rates, fees, deposits, and charges will be on file with the District Clerk; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAREFREE WATER COMPANY, INC. AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget submitted to the District Board and attached 
as Exhibit A hereto, and the proposed rates, fees, deposits, and charges presented by the 
Carefree Water Company, Inc. for Fiscal Year 2025/26, to both the District and the Water 
Company Boards are hereby approved and a hearing on the Proposed Budget and the 
identification and noticing of the rates, fees, deposits, and charges is hereby ordered as 
required by law. 

 
 Section 2. Publication of the notice of the public hearing on the Proposed 
Budget and the identification and noticing of the rates, fees, deposits, and charges in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit B, which was published in accordance with the provisions 
of A.R.S. Section 48-716 is hereby ratified, approved and adopted. 
 
 Section 3. This Resolution is effective immediately. 



Resolution 2025-01 
Page 2 
 
 

-2- 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Town of Carefree, 
Arizona Utilities Community Facilities District and the Board of Directors of the Carefree 
Water Company, Inc. on this 6th day of May, 2025. 
 
 
 
 

   _______ 
     John Crane, Chairman - Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kristen Krey, District Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Denis Fitzgibbons, District Attorney 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
I hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was duly passed by the Board of 
Directors of the Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities Community Facilities District and the 
Board of Directors of the Carefree Water Company, Inc. at a regular joint meeting held on 
May 6, 2025, and that a quorum was present. 
 
AYES _____ NAYS _____ ABSTENTIONS _____ ABSENT_____ 
 
 
 
             
                                                             ____________________________________ 
        Kristen Krey, District Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit A ― Proposed Carefree UCFD Budget Fiscal Year 2025/26  
Exhibit B ― Notice of Hearing



 
 

A-1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 

 
PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2025/26 

 
 

BEGINNING UCFD FUNDS AVAILABLE   $2,037,460 
 
   

SOURCES   
  REVENUES (FROM CAREFREE WATER COMPANY)   
 Debt Service and Rent $1,426,064  

Contingency $500,000  
Total CWC Revenues  $1,926,064 

   
  OTHER REVENUE SOURCES   

Federal Community Grant $800,000  
 Total Other Revenue Sources  $800,000 
   
TOTAL SOURCES  $4,763,524 
 
 
 

  

EXPENDITURES   
  ADMINISTRATION   
 Rent $33,000  
 Total Administration  $33,000 
   
  CAPITAL   
 Public Infrastructure - Construction $2,800,000  
 Contingency $500,000  
 Total Capital  $3,300,000 
   
  DEBT SERVICE   
 Principal – Water System Revenue Bonds Series 2021              $385,000      
 Interest – Water System Revenue Bonds Series 2021 $714,500  
 Trustee Fees $800  
 Capital Advance Payment $48,000  
 Capital Lease Payment (WIFA) $244,764  
 Total Debt Service  $1,393,064 
   
TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $4,726,064 
 
   

ENDING FUNDS AVAILABLE   $37,460 
 



 
 

 B-1 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 

 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
REQUIRED BY A.R.S. §§48-716 AND 48-720(D) 

ON THE PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FY 2025/26 
OF 

TOWN OF CAREFREE, ARIZONA UTILITIES COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
 
 

 Pursuant to Sections 48-716 and 48-720(D), Arizona Revised Statutes, notice is hereby 
given that a public hearing on the Proposed Budget of the Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities 
Community Facilities District for FY 2025/26 will be held by the District Board on May 6, 2025, at 
4:00 p.m. at the Carefree Town Council Chambers, 33 Easy Street, Carefree, AZ 85377.  A copy of 
the Proposed Budget and the rates, fees and charges are on file with the Clerk of the Town of 
Carefree, Arizona and the District Clerk of Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities Community 
Facilities District, at the Carefree Town Hall, 8 Sundial Circle, Carefree, Arizona 85377, telephone 
number (480) 488-3686.  This notice also constitutes notice of the rates, fees and charges as 
required by Section 48-720(D), of the Arizona Revised Statutes. 
 
The meeting can also be viewed live and will be posted on the Carefree YouTube Channel at: 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@CarefreeAZgov  
 

Public Comment – Public comments must be provided in-person.  Comments are to be limited 
to no more than three (3) minutes.  No more than one submission per person or legal entity per 
meeting will be permitted.  Please identify your town or city of residence. 
  
DATED this 23rd day of April, 2025. 
 
 
       /s/ Greg Crossman   
       District Manager 
       Town of Carefree, Arizona Utilities 
       Community Facilities District 

https://www.youtube.com/@CarefreeAZgov


Agenda Item #  5.
TOWN OF CAREFREE

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:
 

05/06/2025
 

SUBJECT:
 

Public Hearing on the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree UCFD budget and         
the proposed FY 25-26 Carefree Water Company budget, rates, fees,        
and charges.
 

PREPARED BY: Greg Crossman, Carefree Water Company Manager

SUMMARY:
Public testimony and comments will be taken during this agenda item.

ACTION NEEDED:
Board Chairman Crane will open the Public Hearing.  When all public testimony and comments are
received, Chairman Crane will close the Public Hearing.


	Agenda
	AI 417 Approval of the  November 12, 2024, Joint Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Town of Carefree Utilities Community Facilities District and Board of Directors of the Carefree Water Company Meeting Minutes. 
	       ATT_11.12.24 Draft Minutes 
	AI 403 Proposed Carefree UCFD Budget - FY 25-26
	       ATT_FY 25-26 UCFD Budget
	AI 404 Proposed Water Company Budget - FY 25-26
	       ATT_FY 25-26 CWC Budget
	2A - July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 Revised Rates - MM Names.pdf
	2025 Rates WO MM Names New

	2B - 2025-2026 Budget Rate Increase and Cost Comparison - BW.pdf
	WR1 & WR4 4.4% Commodity & Ba

	3A - 2025-2026 P and L, Cash Flow Statement - Gregs Mods 2.pdf
	P&L 2025-2026

	4A - 2025-2026 Budget Water Costs - Full CSA.pdf
	Water Costs

	5A - 2025-2026 Budget G & A Costs - Gregs Mods.pdf
	2025-2026 G & A

	6A - 2025-2026 Budget R&M Costs - Gregs Mods.pdf
	R & M 2025-2026

	8A - FY 25-26 10-YR Capital Improv Plan 2.pdf
	Sheet1

	8B - Pipeline Upgrade Priorities - FY25-26.pdf
	Pipeline Priorities

	8C - FY 25-26 10-YR Capital Equip Plan.pdf
	Capital Equipment Plan

	3A - 2025-2026 P and L, Cash Flow Statement - Gregs Mods 2.pdf
	P&L 2025-2026


	AI 405 Resolution 2025-01 - Proposed UCFD/WC Budget Approval
	       ATT_Resolution 2025-01
	CERTIFICATE

	AI 406 FY 25-26 Budget Public Hearing
	agenda_271.pdf
	




